Ref : CB2/H/5

Members
present

e
L egislative Council
L C Paper No. CB(2) 1825/01-02

(Items| and Il of these minutes have
been seen by the Administration)

House Committee of the L egidative Council

Minutes of the special meeting
held in the L egislative Council Chamber
at 2:30 pm on Friday, 19 April 2002

Hon Mrs Selina CHOW LIANG Shuk-yee, JP  (Chairman)
Hon Fred L1 Wah-ming, JP (Deputy Chairman)
Hon Kenneth TING Woo-shou, JP

Hon James TIEN Pei-chun, GBS, JP

Dr Hon David CHU Yu-lin, JP

Hon Cyd HO Sau-lan

Hon Albert HO Chun-yan

Ir Dr Hon Raymond HO Chung-tai, JP

Hon LEE Cheuk-yan

Hon Eric L1 Ka-cheung, JP

Dr Hon David L1 Kwok-po, GBS, JP

Dr Hon LUI Ming-wah, JP

Hon NG Leung-sing, JP

Hon Margaret NG

Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon CHEUNG Man-kwong

Hon HUI Cheung-ching, JP

Hon CHAN Kwok-keung

Hon CHAN Yuen-han, JP

Hon Bernard CHAN

Hon CHAN Kam-lam

Hon Mrs Sophie LEUNG LAU Yau-fun, SBS, JP
Hon LEUNG Yiu-chung

Dr Hon Philip WONG Yu-hong

Hon Jasper TSANG Yok-sing, JP

Hon Howard YOUNG, JP

Dr Hon YEUNG Sum

Hon YEUNG Yiu-chung, BBS

Hon LAU Wong-fat, GBS, JP

Hon Miriam LAU Kin-yee, JP



-2-

Hon Ambrose LAU Hon-chuen, GBS, JP
Hon Emily LAU Wai-hing, JP

Hon CHOY So-yuk

Hon Andrew CHENG Kar-foo

Hon SZETO Wah

Hon Timothy FOK Tsun-ting, SBS, JP
Hon LAW Chi-kwong, JP

Hon TAM Yiu-chung, GBS, JP

Dr Hon TANG Siu-tong, JP

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, JP
Hon LI Fung-ying, JP

Hon Henry WU King-cheong, BBS
Hon Tommy CHEUNG Yu-yan, JP
Hon Michael MAK Kwok-fung
Hon LEUNG Fu-wah, MH, JP

Dr Hon LO Wing-lok

Hon WONG Sing-chi

Hon Frederick FUNG Kin-kee
Hon IP Kwok-him, JP

Hon LAU Ping-cheung

Hon MA Fung-kwok

Members :  Hon Martin LEE Chu-ming, SC, JP
absent Hon SIN Chung-kai
Hon Andrew WONG Wang-fat, JP
Hon WONG Yung-kan
Hon LAU Chin-shek, JP
Hon LAU Kong-wah
Hon Albert CHAN Wai-yip
Hon Audrey EU Yuet-mee, SC, JP

Public Officer : ltemsl andll
Attending
The Hon Donald TSANG Yam-kuen, JP
Chief Secretary for Administration

Mr Andrew WONG
Director of Administration

MsKitty CHOI
Head, Hong Kong Guangdong Cooperation Coordination Unit

Mr K SSO
Administrative Assistant to Chief Secretary for Administration



Clerk in . MrsJdustinaLAM
Attendance Assistant Secretary General 2

Staff in . Items| to lll
Attendance
Mr Jimmy MA, JP
Lega Adviser

Mrs Constance LI
Chief Assistant Secretary (2)5

Miss Mary SO
Senior Assistant Secretary (2)8

[tem 111

Mr Ricky C C FUNG, JP
Secretary General

Mr LAW Kam-sang, JP
Deputy Secretary General

Ms Pauline NG
Assistant Secretary General 1

The Chairman welcomed the Chief Secretary for Administration (CS)
and the other government representatives to the meeting.

l. Chief Secretary for Administration's visits to Beijing and cooperation
between Guangdong and Hong Kong

2. The speaking note of CS on the subject isin Appendix I.

3. Mr IP Kwok-him said that some people had expressed reservations
about the cost-effectiveness of the construction of a magnetically levitated
transportation system (Maglev) between Hong Kong and Shenzhen, given the
short distance. He asked whether the Administration would reconsider the
proposal.

4, CS responded that the Administration was studying the feasibility and
cost-effectiveness, including the possible route and technical issues, of an



-4-

express rail link between Hong Kong and Guangzhou enroute Shenzhen. CS
said that Maglev was only one of the technical options being considered, and
he also had reservations as to whether Maglev would be economically
beneficial. He pointed out that Germany and Japan were the most advanced
countries in developing the Maglev technology, and the first Maglev train to be
put to commercia use would be in Shanghai, from Long Yang Road to the
Pudong International Airport.

5. CS further said that Hong Kong would need to work with the
Guangdong authorities and the Ministry of Railways, as construction of the
express rail link was not a decision to be made unilaterally by Hong Kong.
CS informed Members that in-depth studies would be carried out, and he
expected that more information would be available later to enable a decision to
be made on whether Maglev would be used. CS added that the railway
project required the funding approval of the Finance Committee, and that the
Administration would revert to the Legislative Council (LegCo) in due course.

6. Ms Miriam LAU said that the transport industries had waited for a long
time to seek areas of cooperation with the Mainland, particularly in the
development of the logistics industry. Ms LAU asked CS whether any such
areas of cooperation or business opportunities had been identified and agreed
on during his recent visits to the Mainland. Ms LAU also asked whether there
were other communication channels, outside the framework of the Hong
Kong/Guangdong Cooperation Joint Conference, to follow up the
implementation of the agreed projects.

7. CS responded that the Joint Conference was not the only communication
channel to discuss areas of cooperation between Hong Kong and the Mainland.
CS informed Members that the government officials concerned, in particular,
those in the Hong Kong Guangdong Cooperation Coordination Unit were in
close liaison with the Mainland officials to follow up the cross boundary
development projects. CS pointed out that to enhance the competitiveness of
the logistics industry in Hong Kong, the immediate task was to improve the
operation of the boundary control points so as to reduce the waiting time for
vehicular and passenger clearance. These improvement measures included
co-location of the immigration and customs facilities at the control points,
extension of the operation hours, and provision of more lanes at Lok Ma Chau
for vehicle clearance.

8. CS further said that the second task was to strive for early
implementation of the Shenzhen Western Corridor project to enable faster and
greater volume of vehicular traffic flow between Hong Kong and Shenzhen.
As regards cooperation in the development of the logistics industry, CS said
that discussions had been going on with the Mainland on the setting up of a
logistics service network. CS added that he welcomed views and suggestions
from the industries, and aso undertook to let them know of any information he
had obtained regarding cooperation opportunities with the Mainland.



-5-

9. Mr LAU Ping-cheung enquired about the opportunities for the industries
and professions in Hong Kong to participate in the development of
infrastructural projects in the Mainland.

10. CSresponded that other than himsdlf, the Financial Secretary (FS) was
also involved in exploring opportunities for the industries and professions in
Hong Kong to participate in Mainland's infrastructural projects under the
framework of the World Trade Organisation. CS pointed out that Hong Kong
and the Mainland should explore areas of cooperation in the development of
infrastructural projects, and should not duplicate resources in the planning of
and investment in such projects. CS cited the Nansha development zone and
Yantian container terminal as examples. He further said that there were
exchanges of views and information on the development of infrastructural
projects under the framework of the Hong Kong/Guangdong Cooperation Joint
Conference. CS stressed that such information would be disseminated to the
industries and professions in Hong Kong.

11.  As regards cooperation between the Hong Kong International Airport
(HKIA) and other airports in the Pearl River Delta region, Mr NG L eung-sing
asked what would be the most suitable arrangements, i.e. arrangements which
would be beneficial to Hong Kong and acceptable to the Mainland.

12.  CS responded that it was important that any such cooperation would
bring benefits to both sides. He said that there was much room for
cooperation in improving the multi-modal connections to facilitate passenger
and cargo transport, and logistics operations. He pointed out that the airports
in Hong Kong and the Pearl River Delta could play a complementary role to
each other. For example, HKIA and the Shenzhen Airport were only 37
kilometres apart, and they provided different types of services. HKIA had
scheduled flights to more than 130 destinations, about 90 of which were in
overseas countries. The Shenzhen Airport, on the other hand, had scheduled
flights to 56 destinations, 55 of which were Mainland cities. It was possible
to increase the passenger and cargo traffic of the two places by providing
sea/land/helicopter transport connections between the two airports.

13. CS said that the mode of cooperation between the Hong Kong Airport
Authority (AA) and other airport authorities in the Pearl River Delta region
could include entering into aliance or other arrangements. It would be a
decision for the airport authorities concerned to make. The present proposal
of the Administration was to extend the scope of activities of AA to enable any
airport-related activity in trade, commerce or industry to be carried out on or
from the land leased to AA. CS stressed that strengthening the connectivity
between HKIA and the Shenzhen Airport was necessary to enhance Hong
Kong's position as a leading international and regional air transportation hub.
He hoped that Members would support the relevant legislative proposal to
enable AA to undertake such activities as early as possible.



-6-

14. Miss CHOY So-yuk asked whether CS had discussed, and also reached
consensus, with the Guangdong authorities on any proposal on constructing a
new land boundary crossing, such as the Lingdingyang Bridge. She pointed
out that as the design and construction process of land crossings was much
faster in the Guangdong Province, she was concerned about the interface of
these crossings with complementary projectsin Hong Kong.

15. CS responded that the Shenzhen Western Corridor project should be
implemented as soon as possible, as LegCo had already given funding approval
to carry out the detailed design. The Administration was now identifying the
most suitable landing point of the Shenzhen Western Corridor on the Hong
Kong side. CS pointed out that following the completion of the Shenzhen
Western Corridor, there should not be any problem in the vehicular traffic
between Hong Kong and Shenzhen in the next few years.

16. Asregards the need for another land boundary crossing, CS said that the
Administration would need to carefully examine the likely economic benefits
to Hong Kong. He further said that as most part of the Lingdingyang Bridge
would be within the waters of the Guangdong Province, one would have to
liaise with the Guangdong Authorities to discuss the alignment.

17.  CS further said that the State Development Planning Commission was
coordinating the various proposals on land boundary crossing projects, and
there would be continuous discussions at the Mainland/HKSAR Conference on
the Coordination of Major Infrastructure Projects.

18. Mr Abraham SHEK asked how investment by AA in the airports in the
Pearl River Delta region would attract more passenger and cargo traffic to
Hong Kong. He said that it was for the airlines, air freight and cargo handling
companies, rather than AA, to promote such business opportunities.

19. CS explained that the investment by AA would be on providing
software and ancillary services, and improving the transport connections
between HKIA and the other airports in the Pearl River Delta region. The
provision of the connection facilities, such as ferry or helicopter services
between HKIA and the Shenzhen Airport, would attract more passenger and
cargo traffic, and bring economic benefits to Hong Kong. CS added that if a
new passenger ferry pier was to be constructed to connect the major portsin the
Pearl River Deltaregion with HKIA, immigration and customs facilities would
need to be provided at the new control points.

20. Mr Abraham SHEK considered that the private sector should participate
in providing the transport connection facilities, and it was not necessary to
empower AA to extend its scope of activities. CS responded that while the
private sector could participate in providing the connection services, it might
involve the use of land leased to AA. AA was therefore best placed to
coordinate and carry out these activities.



21. Ms Cyd HO asked CS how the "One Country, Two Systems" principle
was safeguarded in the process of enhancing cooperation with the Mainland,
and how transparency of the process could be ensured. She further asked
whether the concept of sustainable development would be applied to the
development of cross-boundary infrastructural projects.

22. CS responded that both Hong Kong and the Mainland authorities
attached great importance to adhering to the "One Country, Two Systems'
principle throughout the discussions. CS said that while it was necessary to
have consensus over the technology to be applied to cross-boundary projects,
the two places would implement those parts of the projects which were within
their respective territories according to their own way of doing things. He
added that the Mainland also put great emphasis on sustainable development
when pursuing infrastructural projects.  As regards dissemination of
information, CS assured Members that he would issue press releases and
information briefs to Members at the earliest opportunity. He added that any
legislative and financial proposals on the projects would be subject to LegCo
approval, and the details would be fully explained to Members.

23. Ms Cyd HO asked whether there would be a process for the views of
LegCo Members and the public to be reflected and taken into account in the
discussions between Hong Kong and the Mainland. CS responded that he
would be pleased to brief Members and the public on the progress of the
projects under discussion. He would aso welcome any views on how the
Administration could further improve the dissemination of information and
discussion process.

24.  Dr Raymond HO Chung-tai said that according to Mr ZHENG Guobao,
Vice Chairman of the State Development Planning Commission, the
infrastructural development in the Guangdong Province had shifted southwards
to Nansha. As Hong Kong was moving its port development to the west, Dr
HO asked whether there was any mismatch between the Hong Kong port
development strategy and the recent developments in the Guangdong Province,
and whether this mismatch should be rectified.

25. CS responded that he welcomed views and suggestions on how to
improve Hong Kong's development strategy. He pointed out that many
development plans and projects in the Guangdong Province, such as the
Nansha development zone, were still at the preliminary stage. He would
provide more information when concrete details of these projects were
available. CS said that there had in fact been more cooperation between the
two places, for example, in the development of technology and information
technol ogy.



-8-

26. Dr Raymond HO Chung-tai asked whether the Administration would
consider providing cross-boundary passenger ferry service in Tuen Mun, to
enhance the convenience for residents in the New Territories to travel to the
Pearl River Deltaregion.

27.  CS responded that the existing cross boundary ferry services had not
been used to their full capacity. ~He informed Members that the
Administration had received proposals on an additional cross boundary ferry
terminal in Tuen Mun. CS stressed that the Administration would need to
carefully examine the economic benefits of the proposal and the staffing and
resource requirements to support the proposed new control point at Tuen Mun
Pier.

Government's policy on legislation and administr ative measures
28.  The speaking note of CS on the subject isin Appendix I1.

29. Miss Margaret NG said that in putting forward the eight questions (LC
Paper No. CB(2) 1503/01-02), she hoped to seek clarification from CS on how
the principle that the Administration would only legisate if there was a genuine
need to do so, as stated in his letter dated 7 February 2002, was applied in
practice. Miss NG further said that it was also stated in CS's letter that in
considering whether to introduce new or amending legislation to underpin a
policy, a Bureau Secretary would critically examine, among other things, the
social, political and economic impact of the policy on the community, which
meant that the greater the impact, the greater the need to legislate. Referring
to the proposed accountability system for principal officials, Miss NG asked
why the Administration had resorted to effect the transfer of statutory functions
simply by changing the names of afew principal officials by way of subsidiary
legislation made under the Interpretation and General Clauses Ordinance
(Cap 1).

30. CSresponded that he had full confidence that in providing advice on the
legislative means to achieve a policy intent, the Department of Justice (D of J)
would base its advice on very stringent and solid legal grounds. CS further
said that as Miss NG had raised the same query concerning the proposed
accountability system at the meeting of the Panel on Constitutional Affairs (CA
Panel) held on the previous day, a paper would be provided to the Panel as soon
as possible to explain why it was legal, appropriate and reasonable to effect the
transfer of statutory functions by way of a resolution and an Order made
respectively under sections 54A and 62(3) of Cap 1.

31. CSstressed that if there was aneed to legislate, our legal expertsin D of
Jwould decide on the most appropriate legislative means, and the ssmplest and
most straight-forward method would be used so as not to delay the legislative
process. CS added that if the legal backing could be achieved by way of



-9-

subsidiary legidation, then subsidiary legislation would be made; if it was
necessary to draft a piece of new legidlation or to amend existing law, then a
bill would be introduced into LegCo.

32. Miss Margaret NG said that she was disappointed with CS's response
because what she wanted to discuss was not the technical aspects of legidating,
but Government's policy on legislation. Miss NG pointed out that whenever
D of Jwas asked who was responsible for deciding whether or not to legidate,
it would explain that the department was only responsible for giving
“technical” legal advice, and it was the Policy Bureau concerned which made
the decision. However, when the Policy Bureau concerned was asked the
guestion, it would respond that it relied on the advice of D of J.

33. CS responded that Miss NG had in fact raised two questions, i.e.
whether or not there was a need to legislate and, if so, what form the legislation
should take. CS pointed out that in explaining that D of Jwould decide on the
most appropriate legislative means, he was in fact answering the latter question.
CS further said that as regards the former question, if there was aready
sufficient legal basis in existing law to implement a new policy, there would
not be the need to legislate. However, if there was doubt as to whether the
available authority in existing law was adequate, D of Js advice would be
sought.

34. CSsadthat if Miss NG could provide specific cases of D of Jand the
relevant Policy Bureau “passing the responsibility to each other” to him after
the meeting, he would be most willing to ask both sides to work together to
resolve the matter in question.

35. Mr Albert HO said that although D of J might have advised the use of
the ssimplest method, a comprehensive bill on the proposed accountability
system should be introduced, given the very important and fundamental
changes the system would bring about. The bill should cover matters such as
the objects of the accountability system, roles and responsibilities of the
principal officials appointed under the proposed system, and the transfer of
statutory functions to them.

36. Referring to the paper provided by the Constitutional Affairs Bureau to
Members on 17 April 2002, Mr HO further said that what was stated in
paragraphs 27 to 30 concerning conflict of interest were merely guidelines, and
consideration should be given to legislating against public officers abusing
their official position for personal gain. Mr HO asked whether the
Administration had deliberately resorted to using subsidiary legislation, and
had not introduced a bill, so that LegCo would have very little time for scrutiny
and also to consult the public.

37.  CSresponded that in introducing a new policy, what was most important
was to explain to the public and LegCo the intent behind the policy as well as



-10-

its social, political and economic impact. As regards the most appropriate
legislative means to adopt to achieve the policy intent, it was a technica
question for D of Jto decide. CS further pointed out that it was not necessary
to legislate every concept and thinking behind a policy, as it would be too rigid
and would give rise to problems in the implementation of the policy. CS
stressed that under the proposed resolution and Order, the Administration was
simply seeking the transfer of existing statutory functions, and not an
expansion of or reduction in existing powers.

38.  CSfurther said that the Administration had always made use of internal
codes and conditions in employment contracts to provide guidance on matters
relating to conflict of interest. CS pointed out that the arrangement was
appropriate, and given the high degree of transparency of Government’s policy
on such matters, scrutiny by the public and the media was much more effective
than legidation.

39. Mr HO disagreed that the proposed accountability system only entailed
the transfer of existing statutory functions, since principal officials would no
longer be civil servants, but political appointees employed on contract terms.
Mr HO further said that in the Administration’s previous proposal to abolish
the two former municipal councils, two years were spent in consulting the
public and getting the necessary legislation passed. Mr HO asked whether the
Administration would consult the public, and also introduce a comprehensive
bill on the proposed accountability system, if the deadline of 1 July 2002
needed not be met.

40. CS pointed out that a lot of civil servants were currently employed on
contract terms, including the incumbent Financial Secretary and Secretary for
Justice. CS said that while it was important to legislate correctly, different
lawyers had different opinions on the most appropriate legislative means to
achieve a certain policy intent. CS further said that the Administration would
provide a paper to the CA Panel, and try its best to explain to Members
satisfaction that the use of the resolution and Order to be made under Cap 1
was both adequate and appropriate. CS added that subsidiary legislation had
been used in the past to effect transfer of statutory functions between Policy
Secretaries.

41. Ms Emily LAU said that while Members considered the proposed
accountability system very important and the introduction of a hill to give
effect to the system necessary, the Administration had regarded the proposed
system to be a merely technical issue. In fact, some senior government
officials held the view that LegCo would not have been “bothered”, had it not
been for the need to seek approval for funds and for changing the names of a
few principal officials. MsLAU asked CS how such a big difference in views
between the Administration and LegCo about a certain issue or matter could be
avoided in the future.



-11-

42. CS responded that he was only saying that the most appropriate
legislative means to effect the transfer of statutory functions was a technical
issue. The fact that the Chief Executive (CE) personally addressed the
Council on 17 April 2002 demonstrated the high degree of importance the
Administration attached to the proposal. CS pointed out that in his Policy
Address 2000, CE had undertaken to examine the possibility of introducing an
accountability system for principal officials. In his Policy Address 2001, CE
had set out in greater detall the framework of the system, and had also
indicated that the system would be implemented upon the commencement of
the second term of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

43.  CS further pointed out that the CA Panel had, over the past two years,
done a lot of work, including conducting research studies, holding public
hearings and undertaking an overseas duty visit. As the public had generally
accepted the concept of introducing an accountability system, CS hoped that
the proposed system would be implemented on schedule on 1 July 2002, so that
the Executive and the Legislature would be able to serve the public more
efficiently and more responsibly. MsEmily LAU said that the Administration
could not possibly claim that it had aready consulted the public through the
work carried out by the CA Panel. The Administration should issue a green
paper or introduce a white bill to properly consult the public on the proposed
system.

44,  MsEmily L AU further queried that if the Administration had considered
the proposed system so important, it should have introduced a bill, and not the
two items of subsidiary legisation the scrutiny of which by LegCo was subject
to stringent time constraint. CS responded that using a simple method to
effect a change did not mean that the change itself was not important.
Moreover, a simple method would be easier for the public to understand and
would less likely create problems for implementation.

45. Mr CHEUNG Man-kwong asked whether the deadline of 1 July 2002
must be met because the Central People’s Government had endorsed the
proposed system and the implementation date of 1 July 2002. He further
asked whether the Administration would introduce a bill on the proposed
system, if the deadline of 1 July 2002 needed not be adhered to.

46. CSreiterated that in his Policy Address 2001, CE had already said that
the new accountability system would be introduced on 1 July 2002. CS
further pointed out that a resolution was also a legidlative proposal, and LegCo
could refuse to approve it if LegCo so wished. He said that the proposed
resolution and Order had already been provided to Members in draft form, and
a paper would be prepared by the Administration to explain why it was
adequate and appropriate to effect the transfer of statutory functions by way of
these two items of subsidiary legidlation.



-12 -

47.  Miss Margaret NG reiterated that her main concern was Government’s
policy on legidation. D of J had often told Members that there were many
ways to give legal backing to a policy, and it was up to the Policy Bureau
concerned to decide which legislative meansto use. Miss NG pointed out that
during the scrutiny of the Chemical Weapons (Convention) Bill and the
Prevention of Child Pornography Bill, members of the relevant Bills
Committees were told that amendments bills could be used, but the
Administration had decided to introduce primary legidation given the
Importance of the subject matters.

48. CS said that there were not many situations where the Administration
had a choice over which legidlative means to use. CS further said that
different methods would produce different outcomes, and the most appropriate
method should be selected having regard to the circumstances in hand. If
there were ambiguities because the existing authority was provided under
different pieces of legislation, putting all the relevant provisions in one single
legislation might be more appropriate. However, if there was already clear
and sufficient legal basis in existing law, to legislate for the same purpose
would be wasting LegCo's time and creating difficulties for future
enforcement.

49. Miss NG asked CS whether he agreed that what was most vital to
making a law was that it must be allowed its due process. CS replied in the
affirmative.

50. Miss NG further said that in legislating for an important policy, the
principle should be that it was necessary to define the powers and
responsibilities, balance the different interests and consult the public. Miss
NG asked whether such a principle represented the Administration’s position.
CS responded that his answer would also be in the affirmative, if existing
legislation did not provide sufficient legal basis to implement the policy.

51. Miss NG said that she did not think that the Administration was in fact
adhering to such a principle in practice. However she did not wish to follow
up further as it entailed detailed discussion using specific examples.

Follow-up work to examine the Administration's proposed accountability
system for principal officials

52. The Chairman said that the Chief Executive addressed the Council on
the proposed accountability system at the meeting on 17 April 2002, and had
indicated his intention to implement the system with effect from 1 July 2002.
A paper setting out the detailed proposals and the draft legidative proposals
was also provided to Members on 17 April 2002. The Chairman further said
that she would like to take the opportunity of the special meeting to discuss
how the follow-up work to examine the proposed accountability system could



-13-

be carried out in the most effective and efficient manner. The Chairman
added that the proposed Resolution and Order to effect the transfer of statutory
functions to the principal officials appointed under the system had not yet been
formally introduced into the Council.

53.  The Chairman informed Members that the CA Panel had been following
up the subject of accountability system for principal officials over the past two
years. The Administration had also further briefed Members on the proposed
system at the meeting of the Panel on 18 April 2002. The Chairman said that
as the proposed system had raised subject matters and issues, such as the
proposed portfolios of the future principal officials to be appointed under the
system, which straddled different policy areas, some Members had enquired
whether the relevant Panels should separately discuss these subject matters and
| Ssues.

54. The Chairman further said that in considering the follow-up work to
examine the proposed accountability system, Members should have regard to
the need to avoid duplication of work and to ensure equal participation of all
interested Members.

55.  Dr YEUNG Sum said that although it was the Administration's intention
to put the proposed system into operation on 1 July 2002, it was the duty of
Members to examine the proposals carefully, as the proposed accountability
system introduced very important and fundamental changes to the civil service
system. He said that Members should not rush to approve the proposed
system at the expense of sacrificing the quality of scrutiny work and neglecting
other business of the Council.

56. Dr YEUNG Sum further said that the CA Panel had already done a lot
of ground work, including conducting studies on the accountability systems
practised in overseas countries. It was appropriate for the CA Panel to follow
up discussion on the proposed system, and its meetings should be open to all
Members. He added that a separate committee might not be necessary at the
moment, and Members could consider setting up a subcommittee to study the
legidlative proposals when they were formally introduced into the Council.

57. Mr IP Kwok-him agreed that the proposed accountability system for
principal officials required careful examination. He considered that there
should be focussed discussion by one committee, and all interested Members
should be allowed to participate. He commented that the discussion at the
meeting of the CA Panel on 18 April 2002 was not effective, as the meeting
spent more than one hour arguing about logistical matters and the time-table for
future meetings. He said that there were also criticisms that Members who
were not members of the CA Panel did not have equa opportunities to
participate in the discussion at that meeting. Mr [P suggested that a
subcommittee be set up under the House Committee to hold discussions on the




-14 -

proposed accountability system. He also asked whether there were precedents
of subcommittees being formed to study important subject matters.

58. The Chairman advised that there were precedents of subcommittees
being set up under the House Committee to discuss important subject matters
or issues, before the relevant legislation was formally introduced into the
Council. The Chairman added that the subcommittee set up under the House
Committee in 1994 to examine the Airport Corporation White Bill was one
such precedent.

59. MsEmily LAU expressed regret that there was confusion at the meeting
of the CA Panel on 18 April 2002 when the proposed accountability system
was discussed. She said that she had no strong view as to which committee,
be it the CA Panel or a subcommittee formed under the House Committee,
should take the lead in examining the proposed accountability system and
related issues. However, she stressed that there should be public consultation
on the proposed system, and the discussion should be systematic and rational.
She suggested that the policy aspects should be studied first, to be followed by
a debate on a Government motion on the subject. If the Government motion
was passed by LegCo, Members would then examine the technical aspects,
including the legidative proposals and financial implications. Ms LAU
further said that the committee or Panel assigned the follow up work should
discuss all the subject matters covered in the Administration's paper, including
the following -

(@  therespective portfolios of the new Secretaries,

(b)  the merging of functions and streamlining of structure of the
bureaux and departments in the coming 12 months,

(c) the arrangements for civil servants to be appointed as principal
officials under the accountability system;

(d)  theimpact on the civil service system; and
(e)  conflict of interest.

60. MsEmily LAU added that as agreed at the meeting of the CA Panel on
18 April 2002, alist of areas for study should be drawn up for consideration by
the designated committee or Panel.

61. MsEmily LAU further said that while Members might have different
views on the proposed accountability system, she hoped that Members could
reach agreement on how to proceed with the follow-up work to examine the
system, and the scrutiny work should be completed within a reasonable period
of time.



-15-

62. Miss Margaret NG said that she was not in favour of having different
Panels holding separate discussions.  She expressed support for "centralising"
discussion of the accountability system and related issues in one Panel or
committee which should conduct public consultation, and allow all interested
Members equal participation in the work of the committee. Miss NG further
suggested that the responsible committee should discuss the policy and other
aspects of the accountability system, including the draft subsidiary legislation
to effect the transfer of statutory functions.

63. Mr Howard YOUNG expressed support for assigning one committee to
take up the follow-up work, as this would be more effective than having
different Panels discussing certain aspects of the proposed system. He
suggested that the subcommittee, if formed, should make reference to the
previous papers and reports of the CA Panel on the subject.

64. Mr James TIEN expressed support that a subcommittee should be set up
under the House Committee to take over the follow-up work to examine the
proposed accountability system. He pointed out that a subcommittee would
have to be set up sooner or later to study the legislative proposals for
implementing the accountability system. He said that if a subcommittee was
set up right away, it would enable al interested Members to participate in the
discussion of all aspects of the proposed accountability system, including the
draft subsidiary legidation. Mr TIEN further said that Members belonging to
the Liberal Party and the "Eight-party Coalition" would make their best efforts
to study the proposals on the accountability system, but would not be bound by
the Administration's deadline of implementing the system on 1 July 2002.

65. Mr TAM Yiu-chung, Chairman of the Panel on Public Service, said that
before the announcement of the proposed accountability system, he had
discussed and agreed with the Chairman of the CA Panel and the Secretary for
the Civil Service that discussion on the proposed system should be Ieft to the
CA Panel. However, given that the proposed system had raised subject
matters and issues which straddled different policy areas, Mr TAM agreed that
a subcommittee should be set up under the House Committee, so that any
Member could join the subcommittee, if he or she so wished.

66. Dr YEUNG Sum said that he agreed that discussion of the
accountability system should be "centralised” in one committee, and he would
not insist that the CA Panel should be the responsible committee, if Members
preferred to set up a subcommittee for the purpose. Dr YEUNG Sum added
that the subcommittee, if formed, should be responsible for examining the
proposed system, including the policy issues, the legidlative proposals as well
asthe financia implications.




-16 -

67. Mr Ambrose LAU said that he agreed to the proposal to set up a
subcommittee to study the proposed accountability system, if there were
precedents of subcommittees being formed to examine important proposals
before the relevant legidation was formally introduced into the Council.

68. The Chairman proposed that a subcommittee should be set up under the
House Committee to examine the proposed accountability system and related
issues covered in the Administration's paper issued to Members on 17 April
2002. The Chairman said that it was essential that scrutiny of such an
important proposal be allowed its due process, and Members should not rush to
pass the proposals without thorough study. She further said that when the
Administration gave formal notice for, and arranged gazettal of, the resolution
and Order, it would be for the subcommittee to advise how the scrutiny work of
the subsidiary legislation should be undertaken.

69. Members agreed that a subcommittee should be set up to examine the
proposed accountability system and related issues. The following Members
agreed to join the subcommittee: Mr James TIEN, Ms Cyd HO, Mr Albert HO,
Mr HO Chung-tai, Mr LEE Cheuk-yan, Mr NG Leung-sing, Mr CHEUNG
Man-kwong, Mr HUI Cheung-ching, Mr TSANG Yok-sing, Mr Howard
YOUNG, Dr YEUNG Sum, Mr YEUNG Yiu-chung, Ms Emily LAU, Miss
CHOY So-yuk, Mr Andrew CHENG, Mr SZETO Wah, Mr IP Kwok-him and
Ms Audrey EU.

70. The Chairman said that the subcommittee should convene its first
meeting as soon as possible, and provide areport to the House Committee after
completing its work. At the suggestion of Ms Emily LAU, the Chairman
requested the Secretariat to provide a list of previous papers and research
reports on the subject for Members' reference.

71.  There being no other business, the meeting ended at 4:35 pm.

Council Business Division 2

Legisative Council Secretariat
8 May 2002



iF

Appendix |

(R H3A)

F’fjfl Fil= ﬁﬁ“é»;[:@j]—/\ 2002 F 4 £| 19 e . i;fan” 7'7J IHJ"Af
@Eﬁg"gﬁm{glg‘#— ?qj F %Aﬁ

S N ) R IR [E A ;Fé;gfﬁuﬂl x| I/,—;;LLI'T
%Eaﬁiﬁﬁj@ﬁ“‘\ﬂﬁi@ﬂlt ’f&f“ﬁq IR FTJFJ[ g jibﬂ‘
FRuHID FIT FF?FTWDIH 'l @FJ ?%FE‘H ﬂb*%ﬂﬁlﬁ

rFlE'HJﬁv%ﬁ['F[lﬁ’ A Jlﬁiﬂ‘ﬁﬁxj%wiﬁﬁui‘ fﬂJé@Fﬂl

2 EIR w S0 R A L
%%ﬁl“ﬁl@b%f —'F&I@%LFI&EEE IJTJr%“]E[Jzﬂ;J 5 ﬂli{f\@ﬂ
N S [as«'aw?w*mwiw A+ R
By fﬂ“%%‘” FYEZE

Pl £ (=

W A FTJE"PEF [[‘%pli&”ﬂmi [Ee d = FH
E"F’[F P ET r{?% = f—ﬂu B S IIE'%F&EFLH;I%
EJ‘T ar [ERL O e #1]2 IT%, ”£J L'ﬁrl:ﬂw T PURgAE 0 57T AL
PEH??' Fii= - 51 R gﬁ?ﬁﬁkﬁ% = E Péﬁﬁ%wxﬁ: (EEA
| :‘V& l'gr'E'ELEFHZéiB# o v IR A E lﬂ%ﬁ’“ﬁ LR EIS
*% BT TRIFCE BT RV AL Hﬁﬁgﬁwﬁ LY n“— PR
A «&IFW@“J@WJ# IRREE *?Ev‘[ﬂl%ﬁﬂ FEHE -
PO L AORRURLSE € RBTIA A" 61 Osiines }%f
FIFVE R~ SRR I I%ﬂ%a '[ifdﬁ* | P0G
[J%EJ [BIRY=5E  25 M 'MH[JI‘@;%“EJ B L “?EHI é‘gﬂjui

Ta/. &‘Tr‘xﬁfuj AR > A I%F PR Pﬁﬁﬁﬁbﬂﬁ’m‘ i
?gp gy i??ﬂvL LIRS R« A p Jﬁlﬁﬁlﬁ“ifﬂ“ *ée
P BRI TSR AR E%Tﬁf. = T PR > 25T }I‘“*ﬁ‘[m HE
ST BT TRGE mﬁ‘x#wjlﬂ%k Frr g ri?p ISR ETHf ]
IF;—L R IHF LTI ETH ij » RIFEE, éﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬁléﬁ%m (ﬂ
SEEME 'u'w’fﬂxﬁlﬂ M £ W'JE' Fwﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁ IR
dmdﬁfﬁ”# e Pl e AR FﬁJE‘E =5 PR e ol i P i%'fﬁ
PRSP RS R PSSOl -

RIS WEHTE RIS s Lo =
J?’”F”E’*g* e A ik HLA BRI A

1



AHEROT (e FIH S5 - PR RA T TR A
%,erﬂrrwg oSty F'%E'Nptﬂw }ﬁ? E %iﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%{& A NE=R
B FOBITE] % IR T 5 [T 439 » SVl + 2
SR [T (5 -

5 (MY BRI IO LB 12 BT T it
F&é%ﬁwﬁf:*%pw«wﬁ;ﬁiﬁ%“"$%ﬂ%§Jwﬁﬁﬁ
L e N
ﬁm‘aﬁﬁuaﬁ%«i fc [t 1 S R OFIE T o PRy s ot TJJEFG ¥
[ MEGET) TF'{%

=391 2§ 4[’@ II%E\&F[F[ == DR RS rg[%f[lﬁ:}}’»%

ﬁ‘%‘u H[F’ﬁ’fﬁpﬁ b,FI}fFﬂIEF{g HI:]_[::‘-.%%&_: W% gﬂ;nv«ﬂﬁ
AEJP%F”E:FF J\é’»ﬁ‘;ﬂ L PIRY g{d/é' s 5[ R

E o PO Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁglﬁ - £E J[[rﬁtjﬂj *E) RPN
- IR ﬁ%&& TVFA 0 g lribkvlﬁl ﬂ*‘%“rpj[n
%T“Wiﬂﬁﬂ R ¢i%,ﬁw+ gﬁfiﬁk
FIE I‘l: E‘E_fj_[_*ﬁgz J;%—\ | 'F‘? FT‘J 5 Eh;’v IMFEJ [EEJ_:‘—["FF
TR E FTJ Fd o

r—f‘IﬁiﬁjffJP[F[[ﬁ: ?liﬁﬁxj%gl%ﬁm“ﬁﬂ |4 % T Emg[ o e
SRy ?p@lﬁ (s Ry -8 4 il Jyuﬁz;iﬁclm g =N
& S v R R RS e SRV X@H JERYHF - =9 S
i l"‘ﬂ%il'ﬁ\ (=R Elifﬁ‘%ﬁiny« *’?‘/’T R EE R
AR 0 Eh*@‘a%i, e qﬂjp[ﬁf&ﬂ‘ [ IV I L
'iﬁ\’i F%_}UP[ ’ iJ 1&;1%:‘1’[ fﬂ JT}"‘ [@FVFW?}*[FIJQEFV ) |Ei|
BT SR O RTE e A o

R ST ST
Wity SR AREIN ) sl S PR R
A ﬂﬁ?ﬁfﬂiwﬂ% TH R R e

AR 8 L2 At AL e

IO R qugfaﬂﬁW@%w 59
E]T,EJH: )—:Ar/\l[gpu ’ :H[ EAL—r#ﬁL E '—3]; }?‘Lé‘g Ifqu}th ’ %_‘f-‘ll:
,ﬂ;[_]h S ?ﬂyﬂ B 3{[?’5 ﬁf’bﬁ‘fﬁ FHE ’:_fFEﬁ[ﬁ*l ks €5
73/1 s [l':‘

F!

P ﬁﬂﬁ&E%Fu@“E ARFOIERL |9 -
E S - riaﬁ%lﬂ%@%u&kﬁﬂgltﬂi d ?ﬁ%ﬁi?ﬁm
AR T b= ‘?iﬁifll‘ﬁjpl AL WJ“@E@?H
SRS Bl TIEP_IHIuF[JP =k o



F 2 S T RS RIS T (e g e
E BRG] = T 25O URRL I g Y g 29
Hl > mf—:l?;ayi% R L s Gl rfﬁ*‘ﬁfﬁ
MR B B RO B, b E[R R TR - 1%
% ﬁ*%[ﬁ&«l%ﬁfﬂﬁ s #: E ¥ B Hf 22 A iﬁpw FoI L o
fro Hluuﬁ, CIRTEED B R ORPR AR T LSS
S SRR R A T« 1 iw}ﬂfﬁfﬁ BT AR
R T e e e
= F PR R ) AR e G s

»%»zrs;"[i& iﬁ‘\ﬁﬁf—ﬁ« A  HERL #&;“ﬁgﬁ’%ﬁ{ 77 %JJ‘@
gg«pjﬁ@tﬁglu#{& [HII‘,«F £ ‘ﬁﬁigﬁé H;, 1\ ﬂj,}m
il_d’]jiﬂj ) ]El 5@ e&mul o F e P ”j [ H A
ek i@ﬂ'ﬁ“iﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ' > Firl li&EJuF‘J%F‘J IH‘F'EJ*VT‘]‘J
T+ HTRALBRS L mfmfrm Fi
=

iSfFEJEIiM JERLE Vs ST U*%EJI A0 E;
Fogs ﬁéi*ﬂ@'ﬁ?&‘“fﬁm FBh I35 F| 'L“ PEF%D?FL_ E PN
R [ftpﬁi [ERE m[a'p ﬁm\zﬂ BHIAIE 157 5
S Tﬁi* R AP T RS gt o | R Tt ==
L I 4|EEI;FE T Fﬁﬂ[ﬁ:;{*f—%J F[J?Hf%gl_k ; féé—ijgiy—f T ’?ﬂ*fﬁﬁlﬁ
SR A A PRI R - E R WIF‘H*%J&?EJE
@%E’ﬁ*ﬁ%w %“”F’?l"EflfJ’ﬁm° fuﬁf,}% v IH 17&“[[7 SR
ﬁ@ 25 rgmwfmugl ﬁjﬂb < wﬁ# A

o F LA JL | jfﬁ%w ?Jiﬁff—fi? Y e iZIF'ﬁ
mfaﬁx%m ‘ﬂ'%ﬁiﬂié@ﬂ*ﬂ H?fz HEE - i) 2 R
(O iy 7 TR P w&ﬁﬂ O 1o R i - iy
FHIE R Jﬁ’v[‘ﬁﬁ@z [ S ?’”EJ W% %IU[—L— ﬁ?ﬁ‘%

ikt ah ﬁi@pﬂ:ﬂ PRS0 TRl - [ SRl fRiAs
?“E"H\M (EFEfRL - 25T 22 i A it L5 Pl Ry
BT e pﬁgﬂ%l W SE LB B (R AR ©



Frres 11

Appendix ||
(R HIAR)

55 il |~ T'E“A@ﬁ" 2002 =+ 4 | 19 E'le?t‘ﬁ i%fftl?ll[ B fﬁlﬁjﬁ
‘%E%:Euéﬁp g‘l!—

S P P

Fﬁrﬂﬁ iirfff'“ﬂh?fﬂﬁ 5T ‘:fﬁfﬁﬁl ) ATRERLE TS
s R g Rk ﬁr&ﬁrﬁﬁfl EJ Rl R M
Jfﬁ%&i&lFﬁﬁlJﬁLE'ﬂlﬁﬁ ’ ‘Jﬂ SRR JRY TR A

P (R A F) > ik ﬁi{?ﬁﬁwl??f@&ﬂﬁ iiﬁkf I‘IIF[I IR

ﬂ—L ['Scli‘?[lfﬁﬁﬁ?fi 1$F[Jﬁj‘! ol F’?‘[ ﬁ]}ﬁrﬂ‘ﬁi—,ﬁ?‘]‘ﬁ}%lﬂ fi ﬁu
=S ”Mﬁ“ﬂ Ve 5lﬂ3T— ! Wﬂ?’ﬁﬁw RESE Y fp%’éﬁlé 'E

i) TIPS o

FfF

AR » » PR &S IR R *ﬁfM'
o R R |fF B“ﬁiﬂlf"]%:ﬁﬂlﬂﬁ T’Eﬂ S
RIARER W%i%l P L %%Jwa Wﬁ
Syt 7lﬁrﬂi¥ﬁi |7J;|9['TFIF' SRESFUIE %‘Téﬁ” %'Ljf&r ﬁ“Jﬁ; ‘*féﬁf
L¥rFIF’?‘:E£5ELFIJPdE£ SIES IS T OE- E@Eﬁflﬁib# RS F TH
A S TS ) R e -
TR E R R B

s S - e
[—I\[tugkp[fkb[[—{lﬂﬂg Jiii K ‘)I/Jn;ajfliyj[u [JJE?FEI G Ty 1] @EI
oA TR < AR R S5

L—SF’_{]‘[ F’Zf IE IV—LEIJ@W ) ]]E]Jﬁkflj,‘sr_f FI ':Eﬁ:U?l%ﬁJE Hh

AP FEE@;@ CREFIFIE NS PR R

|f, qupl e ;Fj]]%T\L_ .
— UERLE R R G A

— ”'%’FT“E"I%’? ﬁ@ﬁf&ﬁﬁ”‘ 2 RIYA Wﬁ "R
(RLA ) HFRIpvsyE s

—EETE (LR IR

DM CAMEES BOE L e
1[,5}4%55'[4{ M i VIR 2R ‘:L‘?F“FI{-E %



UG+ 25 P70 T @ P I R fgmv}:t aNia
B 7] > 5t = A0k RLY F'FU r_o | rjd_ﬂd ﬁrﬁruq < F[[%AWA
1999 =+ = ﬁ]‘ﬁ{ﬁp s o FTPRLAREZS IF'EJ? it j;t Fp SRV Hf E._,@EJ EJFJ»E‘\T/ EIFU
o TR r‘%ﬁiﬂi | R gk 37 > T’S%wj P F;lpj B P S o
L&ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂi B P R 3 F’?‘i@ﬁ—&z P$J| d/ﬁf
J= ?E'[?FWI =2l J;J‘Frm ’ f9lFﬁi‘é°ﬁL[‘PL['Ef+¥m

|- ﬁifﬁﬁ"&@ﬁ PP Hﬁjjrrj VARSI P -

—r—i]“/\[}[['w;lﬁfl Uﬁﬁ_pﬁi.ﬂj Jlﬁzfg“é FTJIJ > o FIH‘ g (ELA ) BY
SRR H w AT HVRUE K ﬁérpﬁiwﬁlﬁww
o PR f5a IWFfo !

SV RER B o B I ﬁésgrif*f P R A e ?T‘F
T N“} F‘J "%ﬁégl‘ﬁlf'ﬁﬂiiif ﬁ I 0= R
24 l“ﬂﬂl giﬁﬁﬁrﬂ‘ﬁlﬁlt LY [l il o vk
*M%“F ﬁﬂﬁ}[#ﬂl i‘/”IF'EJ’ﬁ'jﬁ EnRlest [’“F’?Wbﬂi’é"“J
B ﬁﬁ‘“’“ﬁ” 2t ”'Fﬁ'ﬁ'ﬂé‘fﬁ“%IEJP“[M%«FJIJDWEJF‘E
HJ% HE P f‘f& S e g e 5 ] R ) P
B ,jﬁglsu = ﬁfuﬁr’f EJ JYE o Iy”ﬁ @lﬁlﬁﬁw@ﬂﬁ ,”—‘:Fm 0

o fﬁl'%i s Y ﬁjﬂﬂﬁii—’[fﬁ ;lﬁlpu 1 ] EJEFJ’F@EJ# F ,
F'gl[ﬁ(’%ﬁg e JuEJTfﬁhﬁ :ME » FS M TR H T NJHIJ [[g,ﬁ
qflﬁl@hM TR [ 8 HIW A ey i‘“"TE PJE*
5% fﬂj = U‘“&IF‘EJrﬂE”‘* ﬁﬁjﬁﬂj’ﬂ“?ﬁjmtﬁ FTWT' Afagy
T rjlﬁuf TFIRYEE o o 3;trF’% ,ﬁFﬁJPI— E‘fﬁf' rtT I 55

FJEJ:*LE‘ B REFRES VR TE%“@&@'FB’T]‘% VT A
IH#_ —R%JlbiP.IEI_“ [‘1:
i%ﬁ | Ty JEISJTE#EW*LE' 25 =N el e v
T s TR Bk
Tﬁ%’]é~ HE @ﬂ%\ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁiﬁm Eﬁﬁ’ﬁ °

R L B L e L B
T BRI 2 MRS () ) SR E e -



